STRUCTURAL PEST CONTROL BOARD PROCEDURES

(Reference to Registrar and Deputy/Assistant Registrar is Synonymous)

Revised 10/24/2019

GENERAL

G-1.	Review of Procedures	4
G-2.	Travel	5
G-3.	Board Committees	
G-4.	Election Of Officers	7
G-5.	Board Meeting Minutes	
G-6.	Guidelines for Access to Public Records	
G-7.	Review of Strategic Plan	12
G-8.	Duties of the President & Vice President	
G-9.	Mail Votes	15
LICENSING & EX	AMINATIONS	
L-1.	Unauthorized Assistance	17
L-2.	Postponement of Examination	18
L-3.	Fees	19
L-4.	Applicator Examination	
L-5.	Incomplete Examination Applications	22
L-6.	Continuing Education Exemptions for Armed	
	Forces Personnel	
L-7	Continuing Education Audits	24
ENFORCEMENT		
E-1.	Complaint Process	26-27
E-2.	Inspection Process	
E-3.	Administrative Hearing Process	
E-4.	Stipulated Agreements	
E-5.	Complaint/Disciplinary Disclosures	37-38
E-6.	Accepting A Complaint By A Registered Company	
	Against A Licensed Employee	
E-7.	Board Member Assistance In Complaint Investigation	
E-8.	Board Review of Closed Complaints	
E-9.	False Advertising/Unfair Competition	
E-10.	Complaint Disclosure Policy	
E-11.	Complaint Disclosure Procedures for Staff	45-46

GENERAL

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF PROCEDURES

PURPOSE: To assure procedures are current

POLICY

A review of Board Procedures shall be made at the annual meeting.

Reference: Section 108, Business and Professions Code

History: Adopted 4/20/79

Amended 6/23/00

SUBJECT: TRAVEL

PURPOSE: To establish a standard procedure for approval of Board Member and advisory

committee member travel

POLICY

Board Member

Members of the Board are to receive prior approval from the President of the Board and immediately submit notice thereof to the Registrar before attending any meetings, other than Board meetings and Board committee meetings, at state expense.

Advisory Committee Member

Advisory committee members must receive prior approval from the President of the Board regarding expenditures necessary to carry out their duties at state expense. Advisory committee members are required to take the lowest cost transportation and coordinate their travel to minimize expense.

Reference: Sections 103 and 8526, Business and Professions Code

History: Adopted 4/20/79

Amended 10/22/93

SUBJECT: BOARD COMMITTEES

PURPOSE: To establish guidelines for board committees

POLICY

Technical Advisory Committee members' terms expire when the appointing president's term expires.

Ad hoc committees will be established by the Board as needed. Members and the chairperson will be appointed by the President.

No action can be taken unless a quorum of a committee is present. A majority of the members shall constitute a quorum.

Reference: Sections 22, and 477, Business and Professions Code

History: Adopted 2/19/88

Amended 11/6/92 Amended 10/22/93 Amended 1/10/03 Amended 7/18/03 Amended 1/15/05 Amended 10/16/14 SUBJECT: ELECTION OF OFFICERS

PURPOSE: Identify when elections are held and to assure equal representation

POLICY

Elections for the offices of president and vice president shall be conducted at the October board meeting. President and vice president shall assume duties at the board meeting following the annual October meeting. At least one of the offices of president and vice president must be held by a public member.

Reference: Sections 8521 and 8522, Business and Professions Code

History: Adopted 2/19/88

Repealed 10/12/90 Adopted 10/21/94 Amended 1/10/03 Amended 10/20/06

SUBJECT: BOARD MEETING MINUTES

PURPOSE: To assure board meeting minutes are completed promptly.

POLICY

Draft minutes of Structural Pest Control Board Meetings will be completed and distributed to board members within 60 days after a board meeting.

Minutes of the Structural Pest Control Board Meetings will be distributed to individuals on the mailing list within 10 days after approval by the Board.

Reference: 8531.5

History: Adopted 10/12/90

Amended 10/22/93 Amended 10/4/96 Amended 11/18/08 SUBJECT: GUIDELINES FOR ACCESS TO PUBLIC RECORDS

PURPOSE: To establish procedures to be followed when making public records available.

POLICY

Public records in the physical custody of the Structural Pest Control Board that are not exempt from disclosure will be made available for inspection or copying as follows:

- 1. Any person may review public records of the Board during weekdays and hours that the office is regularly open for business. Public records will be available for inspection only at the office or location where they are regularly and routinely maintained.
- 2. Requests for inspection or copying of public records:
 - a) should be addressed to, or directed to, the board.
- 3. The board will provide the following to assist a member of the public to make a focused and effective request that reasonably describes identifiable records or records to the extent it is reasonable under the circumstances:
 - a) Assist the member of the public to identify records and information that are responsive to the request or to the purpose of the request, if stated.
 - b) Describe the information technology and physical location in which the records exist.
 - c) Provide suggestions for overcoming any practical basis for denying access to the records or information sought.
- 4. The requestor will be notified in ten (10) days whether the board has disclosable public records. Where unusual circumstances exist as specific in Government Code section 6253(c), the agency may, by written notice to the requester, extend the time for response not to exceed fourteen (14) additional days.
- 5. If a request is made for a record that is stored in an electronic format, the board will comply to the extent required under Government Code Section 6253.9.
- 6. The board may refuse to disclose any records that are exempt from disclosure under the Public Records Act (PRA).

- 7. Any denials of PRA requests for consumer complaints shall be subject to Legal Office review prior to responding to the requestor.
- 8. Functions of the board will not be suspended to permit, and public records will not be made available for, inspection during periods in which such records are reasonably required by board personnel in the performance of their duties. Special arrangements shall be made in advance for the inspection or copying of voluminous records.
- 9. Public records in the possession of the board may be inspected only in the presence of board personnel, except in those cases where the executive officer or his or her designee, determines otherwise. Physical inspection of such records will be permitted at places within the board office as determined by the executive officer.
- 10. The board will provide copies of any requested public records not exempt from disclosure upon payment of the following fees as authorized by Business and Professions Code section 161:
 - Requested public records will be produced at a charge of ten (10) cents per page
 plus the actual costs of the staff time for retrieving and duplicating the
 document(s). The cost of staff time will be computed in accordance with the
 guidelines contained in Section 8740 of the State Administrative Manual. However,
 these fees may be waived if the costs of retrieval and duplication are less than the
 cost of processing the payment.
 - Requests by an individual for copies of records pertaining to that individual (e.g., licensee files, personnel files, etc.) will be provided to that individual at a cost of ten (10) cents per page. In these cases, the cost of staff time for retrieving and duplicating the document(s) shall not be charged (Civil Code sec. 1798.33). However, these fees may be waived if the costs of duplication are less than the cost of processing the payment.
 - Lists of licensees will be provided in electronic, paper, or mailing label form at a charge sufficient to recover the estimated costs of providing the data. Further information and a list of charges may be obtained by contacting the Office of Information Services, Public Information Unit at the following website address: www.dca.ca.gov/consumer/public_info/ or call (916) 574-8150.
 - As provided in Business and Professions Code sec. 163, a charge of \$2.00 will be made to certify any document. This fee is in addition to copying costs.
- 11. A person who inspects records of the board shall not destroy, mutilate, deface, alter or remove any such records or records from the location designated for inspection, but shall physically return these in the same condition as when received, upon either the completion of the inspection or upon verbal request of departmental or agency personnel.
- 12. In the event that any portion of these guidelines may be deemed at any time to conflict with any law or regulation, the law or regulation shall prevail.

13. A copy of these guidelines shall be posted in a conspicuous public place in the office of the board. A copy of these guidelines shall be made available free of charge to any person requesting them.

Reference: Government Code, California Public Records Act

History: Adopted 9/5/91

Amended 10/4/96 Amended 10/11/02 Amended 10/12/07 Amended 4/28/11 Amended 10/5/11 Amended 10/10/2017

SUBJECT:	REVIEW OF STRATEGIC PLAN
PURPOSE:	To assure plan is being followed.
POLICY	
A review of th annual meetin	he status of action taken in compliance with the Strategic Plan shall be made at the ${\bf g}$.
Reference:	
History:	Adopted 6/23/00

SUBJECT: DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT AND VICE PRESIDENT

PURPOSE: Document duties for board members elected to office.

POLICY

President

- 1. The president shall chair all meetings of the board.
- 2. The president or any three members of the board may call meetings at any time.
- 3. If a member is unable to attend, he / she must contact the board president and the registrar / executive officer to advise them of his / her inability to attend.
- 4. The president will be guided by, but not bound by Robert's Rules of Order when conducting the meetings, except to the extent where it conflicts with state law (Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act).
- 5. The president shall establish standing and special committees as the board deems necessary or appropriate. The president shall make the appointment of members to these committees.
- 6. The president will represent the board in all communications relating to any board action or policy. The president may designate another board member to represent him / her if necessary.
- 7. The president will approve or disapprove travel by members of the board, not including regularly scheduled board meetings, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld.
- 8. The president shall have the responsibilities usually vested in or customarily incident to the office of president and otherwise prescribed by law.
- 9. The president elect shall serve as the board delegate to ASPCRO; if he or she cannot attend, the president, or his or her designee, shall serve as the board delegate to ASPCRO.
- 10. The president shall supervise the activities of the registrar / executive officer.
- 11. In intervals between meetings of the board, the president shall have authority to make decisions respecting emergency or urgent matters.

- 12. The president shall sign decisions and rulings of the board on behalf of the board, and minutes after approved by the board.
- 13. The president shall serve as liaison between the board and the Deputy Director of Board Support.

Vice President

1. If the president is temporarily unable or unwilling to perform his or her duties as president, the vice president shall perform all of the duties of the president, and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions upon, the president.

Reference: Section 8523, Business and Professions Code

History: Adopted 1/10/03

Amended 7/18/03 Amended 1/14/05 Amended 11/18/08

SUBJECT: MAIL VOTES

PURPOSE: To provide policies for Board members voting by mail.

Mail Votes

The Board reviews and votes on disciplinary cases on a continuous basis through mail vote. Proposed Decisions and Stipulations are sent to the Board members for their review and vote. Board members have fourteen (14) days to review the Proposed Decisions and Stipulations and submit their vote. Each Board member may vote to either:

- Adopt the Proposed Decision or Stipulation;
- Reject the Proposed Decision or Stipulation; or
- Hold Proposed Decision or Stipulation for discussion at the next closed session.

Any Proposed Decision or Stipulation received by Board staff within thirty (30) days of a Board meeting will be held for closed session. At least four (4) votes are required to adopt or reject a Proposed Decision or Stipulation.

Two (2) votes shall be required in order for a Proposed Decision or Stipulation to be held over for discussion at a meeting of the Board.

Reference:

History: Adopted 10/16/14

Amended 10/10/2017

LICENSING and EXAMINATION

NO. L-1

SUBJECT: UNAUTHORIZED ASSISTANCE

PURPOSE: To establish guidelines for examination proctors when cheating occurs.

POLICY

An applicant who gives or receives unauthorized assistance during an examination shall be dismissed from the examination and his/her markings or results shall be void and such applicant's examination fee shall be forfeited.

Reference: Section 496, Business and Professions Code

History: Adopted 11/12/82

Amended 10/12/85

NO. L-2

SUBJECT: POSTPONEMENT OF EXAMINATION

PURPOSE: To establish unacceptable reasons for granting a postponement of examination.

POLICY

Lack of preparation is not considered a valid reason for postponement as provided in section 1941 of the Rules and Regulations. Such request will be denied and the fee forfeited.

Reference: Section 8560, Business and Professions Code

Section 1941, California Code of Regulations

History: Adopted 10/29/83

SUBJECT: FEES

PURPOSE: To establish guidelines to assure that licenses/certificates and renewals are not

issued until fees are paid.

POLICY

No registration certificate or license or renewal for a license shall be issued or renewed where fees tendered is in the form of a personal check until the check has cleared. Personal checks retuned unpaid for any reason shall be treated in the same way as though no fee at all had been

tendered.

Reference: Sections 8562, 8564 and 8590, Business and Professions Code

Sections 1936 and 1936.1, California Code of Regulations

History: Adopted 11/12/82

Amended 10/25/96 Repealed 10/4/96 SUBJECT: APPLICATOR EXAMINATION

PURPOSE: To establish guidelines for the use, control and security of applicator examinations.

POLICY

General:

- 1. Examinations and answer keys must be kept in a locked cabinet, closet, drawer, or similar enclosed place and not removed until used.
- 2. Examination cannot be reproduced in any form.
- 3. A log provided by the Board of each examination given must be maintained in duplicate and a copy accounting for the previous order sent to the Board with the next order or upon request.
 - The current examination must always be used. When examinations are changed, registered companies will be notified by the Board and unused examinations must be returned to the Board to be exchanged for the current examination.
- After completion of an examination, whether passed or failed, it must be returned immediately to the Board.
- 6. The owner or qualifying manager may act as proctor or designate a proctor to administer the examination. Even though the owner or qualifying manager delegates this authority, he/she remains responsible for the integrity of administration of the examination.
- 7. A new examination booklet must be used each time an examination is given.
- 8. If an examinee fails the examination, he/she may repeat the examination but a new examination booklet must be used.
- 9. The passing grade is 70 correct answers.
- 10. If an examination is lost, stolen or damaged, the Board must be notified immediately.
- 11. Applicator examinations are not transferable from one company to another.

Administration of Examination:

- 1. Proctor must identify the examinee by driver's license or other photo identification.
- 2. Examination must be given in a quiet place.
- 3. Examination must be uninterrupted.
- 4. Examination must be taken at one sitting.
- 5. Examinee must NOT write in the examination booklets.
- 6. Examinee can take short breaks but they must surrender examination booklets to the proctor and they cannot talk to anyone or consult any aids. If more than one examinee is taking the examination at one time only one at a time may take a break.
- 7. Proctor must be present during the entire examination.
- 8. No resource materials or display can be used.
- 9. No assistance can be given.
- 10. Proctor must certify on the cover of the examination that it was administered in accordance with the Board instructions.
- 11. Examined must certify on the cover of the examination that the examination was taken in accordance with Board instructions and agree to an audit by reexamination if selected by the Board.
- 12. Proctor grades the examination.
- 13. Proctor returns all completed booklets and answer sheets, whether passed or failed, to the Board.
- 14. If the examinee passes, the temporary certificate on the cover of the examination must be signed, dated, detached and retained by the applicator. The permanent certificate will be sent to the applicator within 30 days of receipt of the examination by the Board.

Reference: Sections 8551.5 and 8564.5. Business and Professions Code.

History: Adopted 1980

Amended 10/6/84 Amended 10/25/86 Repealed 1/1/91 NO. L-5

SUBJECT: INCOMPLETE EXAMINATION APPLICATIONS

PURPOSE: To establish a standard time period for retaining incomplete application for

examination.

POLICY

An incomplete application for examination will be purged and such applicant's examination fee shall be forfeited six months after the last contact made with the applicant requesting completion of the examination application.

Reference: Section 8562 and 8564, Business and Professions Code

Section 1936, California Code of Regulations

History: Adopted 10/13/89

SUBJECT: CONTINUING EDUCATION EXEMPTIONS FOR ARMED SERVICES PERSONNEL

PURPOSE: To provide for the temporary waiver of continuing education renewal requirements

for licensees servicing during any call for action.

POLICY

Any licensee who permitted his/her license to expire while serving in any branch of the armed services of the United States during any call for action, may have one year from the date of discharge from the armed services or return to inactive status to earn the required continuing education hours necessary to reinstate his/her license; provided the license was valid at the time the licensee was called to action, and the application for reinstatement is accompanied by an affidavit showing the date of discharge from the armed services or return to inactive status.

Reference: Sections 114, 8590 and 8593, Business and Professions Code

Sections 1950, California Code of Regulations

History: Adopted 4/5/91

Amended 9/5/91 Repealed 10/4/96 Readopted 1/18/02 Repealed 4/22/10 NO. L-7

SUBJECT: CONTINUING EDUCATION AUDITS

PURPOSE: To conduct random continuing education audits of licensees to ensure compliance

with the Structural Pest Control Act and implementing regulations.

POLICY:

The Board shall require, as a condition to the renewal of each operator's, field representative's and applicator's license, that the holder submit proof of completion of continuing education courses approved by the Board.

The Board, at its discretion, may conduct random continuing education audits of an operator's, field representative's, or applicator's license, up to 3 percent of renewals received under each license category. The Board may conduct additional continuing education audits as it deems necessary to ensure compliance with the Structural Pest Control Act and implementing regulations.

Reference: Sections 114, 8590, 8593, 8593.1 Business and Professions Code

Section 1950, California Code of Regulations

History: Adopted 10/24/19

ENFORCEMENT

SUBJECT: COMPLAINT PROCESS

PURPOSE: To establish guidelines and procedures for accepting and processing complaints

against registered companies/licensees.

POLICY

Complaint against a licensee/registered company of the Structural Pest Control Board shall be filed with the Board's office.

Upon receipt of a complaint the Board will inquire as to whether the consumer has contacted the company first and made an effort to resolve the problem. Exceptions are those complaints that the Registrar feels should be investigated by the Division of Investigation or a Structural Pest Control Board Specialist because of the seriousness of the evidence of the violation or unusual and special circumstances.

A complaint will not be accepted if the statute of limitations has expired.

When a complainant seeks repairs or treatment at no charge from a licensee/registered company whose termite inspection omitted reportable items which were available to the consumer in a prior report by another licensee/registered company, the complainant will be advised that: (1) the Board will not try to compel the licensee/registered company to bring the property into compliance other than issuing a proper report and (2) the Board will investigate the case to determine if the licensee/registered company is in violation and administrative action warranted.

Upon receipt of a complaint alleging a violation of the Structural Pest Control Act, a post card acknowledging the complaint or letter of rejection will be sent to the complainant within five working days.

Complaints involving possible pesticide poisoning shall be referred immediately by telephone to the local agricultural commissioner.

Consumer complaints shall be mediated by the Board unless criminal or gross violations are readily apparent. Complaints that are the result of gross, deliberate or repeated violations of the Act shall be sent to the Attorney General for disciplinary action regardless of the mitigating action of the licensee.

When a complaint is received, a letter of transmittal and copy of the complaint shall be sent to the licensee/registered company within five working days of receipt.

When a complaint is received, staff will determine if a building permit was required to complete repairs on the property, and also verify whether the permit was obtained.

The letter of transmittal shall request that the licensee/registered company respond to the complaint stating his/her position and intentions. The letter of transmittal shall inform the licensee/registered company that a response is expected within ten (10) days from receipt of the complaint. At the discretion of the Registrar, the ten (10) working days allowed for the licensee's /registered company's response may be extended for good cause, but not to exceed an additional twenty (20) working days. The initial contact letter sent to a registered company will request that building permit final papers must be provided to the Board for each repair performed when such permit is required.

If the licensee/registered company fails to respond to the transmittal letter, the consumer services representative shall try to contact the licensee/registered company before referring the complaint to a Structural Pest Control Board Specialist.

Complaints mediated by consumer services representatives shall be closed or referred to a Structural Pest Control Board Specialist within thirty (30) days after the date of the transmittal letter to the licensee/registered company. At the discretion of the Registrar, the thirty (30) days provided for settlement may be extended for good cause.

The Registrar shall verify all complaints that are resolved by the licensee/registered company.

When a case is closed by settlement or dismissal, the parties shall be notified by the Board within ten (10) days.

Effective August 13, 1999, when a request is made for copies of a complaint file(s) only those documents which are public records, such as accusation, statement of issues, citations, final decisions, documents introduced at an administrative hearing or documents which have been previously disclosed to the public will be provided. All other documents contained in the complaint file will not be disclosed pursuant to the Government Code section 6254(f). If the Board is served with a subpoena it will be given to the Executive Officer or the Assistant Executive Officer or Legal Counsel before any documents are released.

Reference: Sections 129, 8616.5, 8621 and 8622, Business and Professions Code

History: Adopted 4/20/79

Amended 11/12/92 Amended 10/6/84 Amended 12/9/84 Amended 10/12/85 Amended 10/25/86 Amended 9/5/91 Amended 10/22/93 Amended 10/6/95 Amended 10/4/96 Amended 8/13/99 Amended 4/6/00 Amended 10/10/2017 SUBJECT: INSPECTION PROCESS

PURPOSE: To establish guidelines and procedures for processing inspections and assessing

inspection fees.

POLICY

General:

Any case that involves criminal or civil activity within the jurisdiction of a district or city attorney may be referred to those agencies in addition to the Attorney General.

Structural Pest Control Board Specialists that are hired after leaving a registered company shall not be assigned to inspect complaints against that company until after two years from leaving the company.

Structural Pest Control Board Specialists shall be encouraged to obtain a Structural Pest Control Board Field Representative's License in Branch 3 or the equivalent within one year from being hired. The Board also encourages specialist to qualify in all branches.

A Structural Pest Control Board Specialist is authorized to investigate immediately a cause of death or serious injury when structural pest control is involved without first obtaining the approval of the Registrar.

When the Registrar has information which indicates that a licensee/registered company has failed to meet standards of performance or report requirements, a Structural Pest Control Board Specialist may, at the direction of the Registrar, inspect inspections or jobs completed by the licensee/registered company to determine if errors were made or if it appears that violations are deliberate or customary.

When the Registrar requests inspections by Structural Pest Control Board Specialists, such inspections are for the purpose of determining whether the Act and/or regulations have been violated. The specialist shall not give advice, legal or otherwise, when inspecting cases for the Structural Pest Control Board.

The Structural Pest Control Board Specialists when directed by the Registrar shall determine if work is completed or repairs made as specified in the complaint. The specialist may inspect the entire property for compliance with the Act. Any violations found may be grounds for disciplinary action.

The specialist should communicate to the complainant that his/her inspection is conducted for the purpose of enforcing the provisions of the Structural Pest Control Act and that the Board's jurisdiction is over the license/registration certificate and does not award a financial settlement to the complainant.

No Violation Determined:

When a Structural Pest Control Board Specialist cannot determine that a violation by a licensee/registered company occurred, the specialist, at that time, shall inform the complainant and shall include in the specialist report that he/she has given this information to the complainant. When a case is closed by settlement or dismissal, the parties thereto shall be notified by the Board within ten (10) days.

<u>Violation(s) Determined:</u>

When violations are found, a letter from the Registrar enclosing the report of findings of the Structural Pest Control Board Specialist (example below) may be sent to the licensee/registered company by certified mail with return requested allowing him/her/it thirty (30) days to comply. Extensions may be granted by the specialist but all extensions must be requested for in writing and should not extend beyond thirty (30) days. A copy of the letter will be sent to the complainant.

	<u>Example</u>
PE:	NOTICE

The above-numbered case was opened as result of a complaint filed by regarding a property at

Enclosed is a Report of Findings from the Specialist assigned to the case that confirms your activities regarding the property are not in compliance with the Structural Pest Control Act and/or Rules and Regulations.

Within thirty (30) calendar days from receipt of this letter, you must do the following:

- () Inspect the property and submit a Wood Destroying Pests and Organisms Inspection Report addressing, but not limited to, the items described in the attached Report of Findings to the Board. Send a copy of the report to the attention of the assigned Specialist/Investigator at the Structural Pest Control Board, 2005 Evergreen Street, Suite 1500, Sacramento, CA 95815-3831, as well as the complainant/property owner.
- () Bring the property into compliance by correcting the items described in the attached Report of Findings.
- () Submit a Standard Notice of Work Completed and Not Completed to the Board. Send a copy of the Notice to the assigned Specialist at the Structural Pest Control Board, 2005 Evergreen Street, Suite 1500, Sacramento, CA 95815-3831, as well as the complainant/property owner.

An inspection fee in accordance with Business and Professions Code section 8622 may be assessed for inspection(s). If a subsequent inspection is deemed necessary, a reinspection fee may be assessed. A notice of the total amount of inspection fees due will be sent to you under separate cover.

In order to expedite this case, please notify the Specialist named in the attached Report of Findings, in writing, within ten (10) calendar days of your intention to comply with these requirements.

You are hereby advised that if you desire a hearing to contest the Report of Findings, you must mail/deliver to the Board a written request for a hearing within twenty (20) days of your receipt of the Report of Findings. You may, but need not, be represented by counsel at any or all stages of these proceedings. You are further advised that any hearing held hereunder will not be limited to the question of non-compliance or payment of the inspection fee, but may also include evidence of any other violations you may have committed in this instant complaint case or any other case. Said hearing could result in suspension or revocation of your license, as well as the imposition of other penalties authorized by law.

Please note that failure to file a request for a hearing within the twenty (20) days of your receipt of this Report of Findings shall constitute a waiver of your right to request a hearing. If you do not request a hearing, payment of any assessment shall not constitute an admission of any non-compliance charged.

You are also advised that even if you do not request a hearing, the Board may initiate the hearing process by filing an accusation against you. Any hearing held hereunder will not be limited to the question of non-compliance or payment of the inspection fee(s), but may also include evidence of any other violations you may have committed. Said hearing could result in suspension or revocation of your license as well as the imposition of other penalties authorized by law.

Sincerely,

STRUCTURAL PEST CONTROL BOARD

Cases shall be closed by the Structural Pest Control Board Specialist or sent to the Chief Enforcement Officer for enforcement of disciplinary determination within forty (40) days after compliance or noncompliance with the report of findings.

<u>Inspection Fees Under Section 8622</u>

The Structural Pest Control Board Specialist shall be the Board's representative for determining licensee/registered company compliance.

The fee shall be based on the time necessary for the initial inspection and final inspection following a corrected inspection or completion report, or both. Travel time is not included.

Fees shall be assessed at the full cost recovery rate computed for Structural Pest Control Board Specialists up to \$125 per inspection.

If through mediation the licensee/registered company agrees to perform corrections as identified

by the complaint questionnaire but the homeowner will not consent and insists upon an inspection by a Structural Pest Control Board Specialist, no inspection fee will be assessed. However, a licensee/registered company must provide evidence that an offer was made prior to the Structural Pest Control Board Specialist referral in order to avoid paying fees. A positive offer must be in writing or made to the consumer services representative. Without such evidence, inspection fees will be assessed, unless the specialist determines the property is in compliance.

Complaints that result in the inspection by a Structural Pest Control Board Specialist and the filing of disciplinary action without allowing the licensee/registered company thirty (30) days to correct is exempt from the assessment.

A letter advising of the required fee will be sent to the licensee/registered company upon closure. If payment is not remitted within thirty (30) days of the original request, a final demand for payment will be sent.

If payment is not remitted within thirty (30) days of the final notice, administrative or civil action will be initiated by the Registrar.

Reference: Sections 108, 129, 155, 8520 and 8622, Business and Professions Code

History: Adopted 4/20/79

Amended 10/30/81 Amended 11/12/82 Amended 10/29/83 Amended 10/6/84 Amended 10/12/85 Amended 10/25/86 Amended 2/19/88 Amended 4/22/94 Amended 10/2/98 Amended 1/11/08 Amended 11/18/08 NO. E-3

SUBJECT: ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING PROCESS

PURPOSE: To establish guidelines for procedures for administrative hearings and content of

proposed decisions.

POLICY

When a licensee/registered company has an accusation filed against him/her, the Board will consider hearing the matter in front of the administrative law judge whenever the Registrar recommends that the accusation is unusual and warrants the Board's attention.

Office of Administrative Hearings Agency Policy Statements

Where the record permits, the proposed decision shall contain findings of fact as to whether restitution has been made. When offered by the respondent, a conditional order (probationary) may include restitution in the amounts of and on the terms offered.

When appropriate, the proposed order should permit completion of work contracted for by the licensee/registered company prior to the hearing (Business and Professions Code section 8620).

It is requested that findings of fact set forth concisely those facts upon which the administrative law judge rests any extraordinary conclusions or recommendation. Aggravating circumstances, mitigating circumstances, or factors relating to rehabilitation, or the lack thereof (particularly including whether or not restitution has been made), should be included in the findings.

Civil penalties shall not be assessed by the administrative law judge but are left to the discretion of the Board.

Board Member and Staff Appearance with Legal Counsel

The Registrar, Chief Enforcement Officer and/or Board Members shall not discuss an accusation which is pending before the Board with the respondent and/or his/her/its counsel.

Reference: Section 8620, Business and Professions Code

Section 11517 and 11518, California Administrative Procedure Act

History: Adopted 4/20/79

Amended 11/12/82 Amended 10/25/86 Amended 10/2/98 Amended 11/18/08 SUBJECT: STIPULATED AGREEMENT

PURPOSE: To establish guidelines for negotiating settlements of administrative actions.

POLICY

Stipulated agreements are recognized by the board as a means of resolving violations of the Structural Pest Control Act without further expense to either the board or the licensee/registered company. The Registrar and Chief Enforcement Officer have delegated authority to negotiate stipulated agreements on the board's behalf. The following procedures and considerations, however, must be complied with by the licensee/registered company or the licensee's/registered company's attorney in submitting stipulated agreements for board consideration.

- 1. The stipulation should be in writing and submitted by the respondent through the Deputy Attorney General assigned to the case for review by the registrar and submission to the board.
- 2. The stipulation should contain a penalty.
- 3. The stipulation should provide for a minimum three year probationary period.
- 4. The stipulation should specifically state whether restitution has been or will be made to the consumer and the amount of such restitution.
- 5. The stipulation should -may provide that respondent agrees to provide a surety bond as required by Business and Professions Code section 8697.3.
- 6. The stipulation should may—require as a condition of probation that the respondent complete the Board approved course in the appropriate branch(es) of violation within one and one-half years 6 months—of the effective date of the decision—with a final grade of c minus (c-) or better.
- 7. The stipulation may restrict discipline to the branch(es) of violation.
- 8. Quarterly reports may be shall be required as a condition of probation. If so required, reports under penalty of perjury specifying the following for the particular quarter:

Operator – Branch I

A. Number of fumigations performed.

- B.— Number of fumigations using Methyl Bromide, Vikane and other fumigants, identifying such other fumigants.
- C.B. Name(s) and license number(s) of field representative(s) and operator(s) employed of all employees including the names of non-licensees.
- D.C. Name(s) and license number(s) of supervisor(s) in charge of licensees and work crews.
- E.D. Type and amount of training offered to new hires and continuing employees.
- F.E. Complaints received by the company regarding fumigations.
- G.F. Notices of violations or citations issued by agencies other than the Structural Pest Control Board.
- H.G. Any other information requested by the registrar.

Operator - Branch II

- A. Number of services performed.
- B. Name(s) and license number(s) of <u>field representative(s)</u> and <u>operator(s) employed all</u> <u>employees including the names of non-licensees</u>.
- C.—Name(s) and license number(s) of licensed applicator(s) employed.
- D.C. Name(s) and license number(s) of supervisor(s) in charge of licensees and work crews.
- E.D. Type and amount of training offered to new hires and continuing employees.
- F.<u>E.</u> Complaints received by the company regarding pesticide misapplication.
- G.F. Pesticide-related nNotices of violation or citations issued by agencies other than the Structural Pest Control Board.
- H.G. Any other information requested by the registrar.

Operator - Branch III

- A. Name(s) and license number(s) of field representative(s) and operator(s) employed and the number of inspections completed by each all employees including the names of non-licensees.
- B.——Name(s) and license number(s) of licensed applicator(s) employed.
- C.B. Name(s) and license number(s) of supervisor(s) in charge of licensees and work crews.
- D.C. Type and amount of training offered to new hires and continuing employees.
- E.D. Complaints received by the company regarding inspections or work performed.

- F.E. Notices of violations or citations issued by agencies other than the Structural Pest Control Board.
- G.F. Number of inspections ordered by licensed real estate agents or realty offices and the number of inspections ordered by individuals performed.
- H.G. Number of Notices of Work Completed and Not Completed filed.
- **H.H.** Any other information requested by the registrar.

Field Representative/Operator-Employee – Branch I

- A. Number of fumigations performed by this licensee.
- B. Complaints regarding fumigations performed by this licensee received regarding this licensee.
- C. Training courses completed or currently being taken by this licensee.
- D. Notices of violations or citations issued to this licensee by agencies other than the Structural Pest Control Board.
- E. Any other information requested by the registrar.

Applicator/Field Representative/Operator-Employee – Branch II

- A. Number of pesticide applications performed by this licensee.
- B. Complaints received regarding pesticide misapplication by this licensee.
- C. Training courses completed or currently being taken by this licensee.
- D. Pesticide-related nNotices of violations or citations issued to this licensee by agencies other than the Structural Pest Control Board.
- E. Any other information required by the registrar.

<u>Applicator/Field Representative/Operator-Employee – Branch III</u>

- A. Number of <u>pesticide applications and number of</u> inspections, <u>work completed and completed not completed performed</u> by this licensee.
- B. Complaints received regarding inspections or work performed by this licensee.
- C. Training courses completed or currently being taken by this licensee.
- D. Pesticide related nNotices of violations or citations issued to this licensee by agencies other than the Structural Pest Control Board.
- E. Any other information requested by the registrar.

A cover letter from respondent may accompany the stipulation setting forth the following:

- (1) Any mitigating circumstances which may justify a reduction of the penalty.
- (2) Procedural steps to be taken by the respondent to prevent a reoccurrence of the violations.
- (3) An explanation for the failure to resolve the complaint at the consumer services representative or board specialist level prior to filing of the accusation by the board.
- (4) An explanation as to why discipline is limited to a specific branch office(s) or to a specific branch of licensure.

A detailed cover memorandum from the deputy attorney general assigned to the case must accompany the stipulation setting out some evidence and facts adverse and/or beneficial to the board's case and setting forth the reasons why the Board should accept the stipulation. If this cover memorandum does not accompany a stipulation, it will be returned to the deputy attorney general.

Reference: Sections 101.6 and 8697.3. Business and Professions Code

Section 1999.1, California Code of Regulations

Section 11511.5, California Administrative Procedure Act

History: Adopted 11/12/82

Amended 10/29/83 Amended 8/10/85 Amended 10/25/86 Amended 2/19/88 Amended 4/22/94 Amended 10/6/95 Amended 10/5/96 Amended 10/2/98 SUBJECT: COMPLAINT/DISCIPLINARY DISCLOSURE

PURPOSE: To establish guidelines for disclosing complaints and disciplinary action histories to

the public.

POLICY

It is the policy of the Structural Pest Control Board that information regarding complaints and disciplinary actions against licensees/registered companies and information regarding their license/registration certificate status as specified below shall be readily accessible in a meaningful form to the public unless in the determination of the Board, disclosure of such complaint information would be unduly prejudicial to licensees/registered companies.

Information to be Provided Regarding Complaints

The Board shall maintain a system of information regarding complaints received during the preceding two fiscal years, which will afford to the public, upon request, all of the following regarding a particular licensee/registered company:

- A. The number of complaints filed against a licensee/registered company which, after contact with the licensee/registered company, have been closed. If information is requested on a multi-branch company, information will be given on the branch office requested; and
- B. With respect to each such complaint, the following information:
 - (1) Its date of receipt
 - (2) (1s disposition, by indicating whether the matter has been:
 - (a) dismissed
 - disposed of through settlement or compromise
 - c) referred to formal disciplinary action
 - d) disposed of through any other action, formal or informal, taken against the licensee/registered company

Information to be Provided Regarding Disciplinary Actions

The Board shall maintain records showing the disciplinary history of all current

licensees/registered companies and shall inform the public, upon request, whether any current licensee/registered company has been disciplined during the preceding three years, and, if so, when and for what offense. Any request for a license history beyond the preceding three years must be made in writing and provide full cost recovery.

<u>Information to be Provided Regarding License/Registration Certificate Status</u>

The Board shall provide to the public, upon request, the following information regarding past and current licensees/registered companies:

- A. The name of the licensee/registered company, including all business or fictitious names that appear on board records
- B. The license/registration certificate number
- C. The address of record and telephone number
- D. The date of original licensure/or registration,
- E. Information concerning a bond, insurance or cash deposit
- F. The date such license/registration certificate expired or was terminated and, if applicable, the reason for termination

Quantity of Information to be Provided per Week

To avoid undue delay in the Board's response to other requesters and in order that no requester may overburden the Board's system, the Registrar may establish reasonable limits on the number of requests per week from any one requester which the Board may accept.

Press Releases

Notices on suspension or revocation of a license and/or registration may be sent by the Board after the period for appeal has expired to media sources within the licensee's location without departmental approval. Actions that involve the department shall be submitted to the director.

Reference: Sections 6250, 6252 and 6253, Business and Professions Code

History: Adopted 1/18/80

Amended 11/12/82 Amended 10/25/86 Amended 2/19/88 Amended 10/2/97 Repealed 10/14/99 SUBJECT: ACCEPTING A COMPLAINT BY A REGISTERED COMPANY AGAINST A LICENSED

EMPLOYEE

PURPOSE: To establish instructions for accepting a complaint by a registered company

against a licensed employee

POLICY

1. A complaint will be accepted for serious cases at the Registrar's discretion.

- 2. The company must submit to the Board a minimum of three addresses where major violation of the law occurred by the licensee.
- 3. The company must secure an agreement with each property owner that he/she will allow a Structural Pest Control Board Specialist to inspect the property prior to the repairs being undertaken by the registered company.
- 4. The complaint is sent directly to the appropriate specialist for inspections of the properties. If violations are observed, the registered company and subject employee are advised.
- 5. The company must make the necessary repairs for the consumer.
- 6. Disciplinary action is initiated against the licensed employee.
- 7. Cases involving poor quality control by an employer, poor supervision, poor training, etc. will not be accepted by the Board.

Reference: Sections 129, 8616.5, 8621 and 6822, Business and Professions Code

History: Adopted 8/4/89

Repealed 10/4/96

SUBJECT: BOARD MEMBER ASSISTANCE IN COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION

PURPOSE: To permit a board member's assistance and expertise in the complaint

investigation process while assuring a non-biased disciplinary decision.

POLICY

The registrar, at his or her discretion, may request a board member's assistance while investigating a complaint with the understanding that the board member should recuse himself/herself when the matter is considered for disciplinary action.

Reference: Sections 129, 8620, 8621 and 8622, Business and Professions Code

History: Adopted 4/22/94

Amended 11/18/08 Repealed 10/17/13 SUBJECT: BOARD REVIEW OF CLOSED COMPLAINTS

PURPOSE: To establish quality control procedures

POLICY

At each Board meeting, the Board will be provided with a list of closed consumer complaints by number and disposition. A committee of two Board Members will select and review cases.

Reference: Sections 129, 8620, 8621 and 8622, Business and Professions Code

History: Adopted 10/22/93

Repealed 1/18/02

SUBJECT: FALSE ADVERTISING/UNFAIR COMPETITION

PURPOSE: To establish guidelines for accepting complaints regarding false advertising/unfair

competition

POLICY

In cases of significant wrong doing involving false advertising or unfair competition, appropriate action under the provisions of Business and Professions Code sections 17200 and 17500 will be

considered.

Reference: Sections 8648, 17200 et seq., 17500 et seq.

History: Adopted 10/22/94

Repealed 10/11/02

SUBJECT: COMPLAINT DISCLOSURE POLICY

PURPOSE: Defined Policy to Provide the Public with Information Regarding Complaint and

Disciplinary Actions

POLICY

The Structural Pest Control Board (hereinafter "Board") complaint disclosure policy has been developed to provide the public with information regarding complaints and disciplinary action against pest control licensees, candidates for licensure, and unlicensed individuals.

The Board's complaint disclosure policy does not include non-actionable complaints. Non-actionable complaints are those, which after investigation, were determined to be unsubstantiated or complaints which have been determined not to be within the Board's jurisdiction. If a complaint was initially determined to indicate a probable violation of law and is later found, upon further investigation, not to constitute a violation, it shall not be disclosed.

In complying with a request for complaint information, the Board may provide such cautionary statements as may be considered appropriate regarding the usefulness of complaint information to individual consumers in their selection of a pest control licensee.

Information to be Released

The Board will disclose the following information regarding complaints:

Closed Actionable Complaints

Closed actionable complaints are defined to mean complaints, which the Board has (1) investigated, (2) determined that there was a violation of the laws regulating the practice of structural pest control and (3) taken disciplinary action (i.e. citation, accusation, statement of issued, stipulated settlement).

With regard to closed actionable complaints, the board will disclose the number of closed actionable complaints, and the disposition or action taken, including any criminal conviction or any decision or stipulation which resulted from the filing of an accusation or statement of issues, and the date of closure. The disposition of administrative cases (in accusation and statement of issues) will be released only after the decision has become effective. The Board will furnish a copy of the accusation, statement of issues, citations, documents introduced at the hearing relating to a disciplinary action, and the decision resulting.

Pending Complaints

Pending complaints are defined to include the following:

Category 1.

(a) Complaints which are under investigation but no determination has been made as

to whether a violation of the Board's laws has occurred, or

(b) Complaints which after review by Board staff, indicate a probable violation of the

Board's laws, but a disposition of the complaint is pending.

Category 2.

(a) A complaint which after an investigation has indicated a probable violation of the board's law and has been referred to the Attorney General's Office for prosecution.

Category 3.

(a) A complaint which has resulted in the issuance of a citation by the Board or county

agricultural commissioners or the initiation of formal disciplinary action, e.g., an accusation or statement of issues being filed by The Office of the Attorney

General, but where a decision has not been rendered.

Information To Be Disclosed on Pending Complaints

Category 1 Complaints---The Board will disclose no information regarding Category 1 complaints.

Category 2 Complaints---The Board will disclose the existence and number of Category 2 complaints filed against a licensee, along with a statement that the complaint has been referred

to The Office of the Attorney General for review and possible prosecution, but that there has

been no final determination of wrongdoing by the licensee.

Category 3 Complaints---The Board will disclose the existence and number of category 3 complaints and provide copies of the charging documents, e.g. accusation, statement of issues,

or citations along with a statement that there has been no final determination of wrongdoing by

the licensee.

History:

Adopted 8/13/99

45

NO. E-11

SUBJECT: COMPLAINT DISCLOSURE PROCEDURES FOR STAFF

PURPOSE: To Provide Staff Guidelines For Disclosing Information on Complaints

Closed Actionable Complaints

Upon receipt of any inquiry for complaint information, which results in identification of a closed actionable complaint(s), as defined in the Board's Complaint Disclosure Procedure, enforcement staff shall disclose specific information after making the following disclosure statement:

The Board currently has (specify number) closed complaint(s), which has resulted in a administrative or disciplinary action against this individual. A determination has been made that there has been a violation of the laws regulating the practice of pest control. Copies of an accusation, statement of issues, citations, final decisions, and any documents introduced at an administrative hearing or documents, which have been previously distributed to a member of the public, can be disclosed to a member of the public. All other documents contained in the investigatory file will not be made public in accordance with Government Code Section 6254(f).

Following the statement, enforcement staff will disclose the number of complaints received and if there was a violation or if it was settled.

Pending Complaints in Board Office

Upon receipt of an inquiry for complaint information, which results in the identification of an open complaint(s), which is under investigation and pending a determination of a violation of intended action, enforcement staff shall make the following disclosure statement:

If no action has been determined or taken on an open complaint the staff will advise that "Currently there are no complaints against the company/individuals."

If complaints after investigation indicated a probable violation, and have been referred to The Office of the Attorney General, but no formal documents have been filed then the following statement should be made. "The Board currently has (specific number) complaint(s) open against this company/individual. The matter(s) has been forwarded to The Office of the Attorney General for review and possible prosecution. At this time there have been no confirmed violations of the Structural Pest Control Act."

<u>Pending Complaints – Accusation or Statement of Issues Has Been Served</u>

Upon receipt of an inquiry for complaint information which results in the identification of an open complaint which has been referred to The Office of the Attorney General and an accusation or statement of issues has already been served, enforcement staff shall make the following disclosure statement:

"The Board currently has (specify number) complaint(s) open against this individual. The matter(s) has been forwarded to The Office of the Attorney General and an accusation/statement of issues has been served. At this time, there have been no confirmed violations of the Structural Pest Control Act. A copy of the accusation/statement of issues can be obtained by submitting a written request to the Board."

<u>Subpoenas</u>

If the Board is served with a subpoena that document will be given to the Executive Officer or the Assistant Executive Officer and forwarded to Legal Counsel before any documents are released.

Staff will not provide any additional information.

History: Adopted 8/13/99